
Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable 
Development  
 
Dear Member, 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Lead Member for Planning and 
Sustainable Development to be held as follows for the transaction of the business 

indicated. 
Tom Stannard 
Chief Executive 

 
An audio broadcast of this meeting will be live-streamed. 

 
Should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, which will 
be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by sending an 

email to the address at the bottom of this agenda.  Please do this by 4.30pm on the 
day before the meeting is due to take place. 

 
DATE: Tuesday, 17 January 2023 

 
TIME:  10.00 am 
 
VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting - the live audio broadcast of the meeting 

can be accessed via the link below 

 
 

AGENDA 

 
 THE LIVE AUDIO BROADCAST CAN BE ACCESSED VIA THE 

LINK BELOW: 

This link will work if you are using a Microsoft device. If you are using 
an Apple or android based device, you will need to download the 
Microsoft Teams app in order to view the meeting via this link. 

 
Live Audio Broadcast - Lead Member for Planning & Sustainable 

Development - 17 January 2023 
 

 

1   Apologies for absence.  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest.  

 

 

3   Items for Decision (Part 1 - Open to the Public):  

 

 

3a City of Salford (Allotment Road, Kenmore Grove, Poplar Grove, Moss 
Side Road And Prospect Road, Cadishead And Lower Irlam) 

(Prohibition of Waiting, No Stopping on School Entrance Markings 
and Amendment) Order 2023.  
 

(Pages 3 - 15) 

3b Consideration of the potential addition of Cleveland House, 224 
Eccles Old Road, to the Local List of Heritage Assets.  

(Pages 16 - 28) 

Public Document Pack

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZTFlNmM0NTQtNGFmYS00NjNmLWI5ZDMtNWQ3MTc3YzQ5OGM0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7B%22Tid%22%3A%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2C%22Oid%22%3A%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2C%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3Atrue%2C%22role%22%3A%22a%22%7D&btype=a&role=a
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZTFlNmM0NTQtNGFmYS00NjNmLWI5ZDMtNWQ3MTc3YzQ5OGM0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7B%22Tid%22%3A%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2C%22Oid%22%3A%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2C%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3Atrue%2C%22role%22%3A%22a%22%7D&btype=a&role=a


 

 
3c Review of Street Naming and Numbering Charges.  

 

(Pages 29 - 32) 

4   Exclusion of the Public.  

 

 

5   Items for Decision (Part 2 - Closed to the Public):  
 

No items. 
 

 

 

Contact Officer: Claire Edwards 
Tel No: 0161 793 2602 

E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public 

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 

TO LEAD MEMBER BRIEFING FOR 

PLANNING, TRANSPORT AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

ON 17TH JANUARY 2023 

 

TITLE: City Of Salford Allotment Road, Kenmore Grove, Poplar Grove, 
Moss Side Road And Prospect Road, Cadishead And Lower Irlam) 

(Prohibition Of Waiting, No Stopping On School Entrance Markings And 
Amendment) Order 2023 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
That the Lead Member for Planning, Transport and Sustainable Development 
consider the contents of this report and make a decision to: 
 
(i) accede to the objections in part; 
(ii) approve the modifications to the scheme as set out in this report; and 
(iii) authorise the making of the Traffic Regulation Order in the modified form. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Irlam & Cadishead Highways Task Group received complaints about visibility 
issues on Moss Side Road at junction with Poplar Grove and Kenmore Grove, 
Cadishead and Lower Irlam Ward. A scheme has been developed to provide ‘No 
Waiting at Any Time’ Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) at the above-mentioned 
junctions as well as ‘No Stopping’ on School Keep Clear road markings TRO on 
Moss Side Road.  
 
The Traffic Management Unit have been formally consulted on the proposals on 21st 
February 2022 and there were no adverse comments received. The TRO was legally 
advertised on 12th May 2022 until 6th June 2022, during which time 6 objections have 
been received. 
 

 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3a



 2 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
Appendix 1 – Schedules as advertised 
Appendix 2 – Plans as advertised 
Appendix 3 – Recommended amended schedules 
Appendix 4 – Recommended amended plans 

 

KEY DECISION: 
No 

 

DETAILS: 
 
A request has been made to Salford City Council by the Irlam & Cadishead Highways 
Task Group to introduce road safety measures on Moss Side Road area at junction 
with Kenmore Grove and Poplar Grove due to inconsiderate parking taking place, 
obstructing visibility splays. 
 
Site visits showed that the parking situation at junction Allotment Road/Moss Side 
Road could also be improved. The area is subject to 20mph speed limit. It was also 
noted that not all ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions marked on site are supported 
by a Traffic Regulation Order. 
 
In order to discourage inconsiderate parking which takes place at the junctions of 
Allotment Road, Kenmore Grove and Poplar Grove with Moss Side Road it was 
proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions on all junctions to 
improve visibility for pedestrians and other road users. The restrictions would also 
assist with the safe movement of service vehicles. The extended ‘No Stopping’ on 
school entrance markings would remove gaps between restrictions and make sure 
that vehicles are not stopping at school gates. 
 
The scheme was shared and supported by local Ward Councillors at the Irlam & 
Cadishead Highways Task Group meeting and by Cadishead Primary School 
Headteacher. These waiting restrictions are detailed in the schedule in Appendix 1 
and on the plan in Appendix 2. 
 
Currently at Kenmore Grove and Poplar Grove motorists are parking in a manner 
which is causing a hazard for other drivers and pedestrians. The new restriction will 
prevent people from hazardous parking. Also, visibility for pedestrians crossing the 
road at the junction is obstructed. If the proposals are introduced, safety for both 
drivers and pedestrians will be improved. At the Allotment Road junction, the ‘No 
Waiting at Any Time’ is shorter and there are gaps between restrictions, which will be 
covered by extending the ‘No Stopping’ on school entrance markings up to the 
existing waiting restrictions. 
 
The scheme was officially advertised in May and June 2022. Additionally, a letter was 
sent to directly affected residents advising about the proposals and details how to 
make representations to the scheme. 
 

Page 4



 3 

CONSIDERATION OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
A summary of the main grounds of the 6 objections received and the engineer's 
response to those points - is set out below. All representations are redacted. 
 
Objection: I do understand the need for action of some sort during dropping off and 
picking up time at the school, however I'm concerned regarding the effect this is 
going to have on parking for the residents, which is difficult on occasions. Would a 
resident permit scheme not be possible?  
 
Response: The residents and other road users would have to find available parking 
place. It is not Salford City Council’s responsibility to provide parking places, only to 
maintain safe traffic flow. Highway Code rule 243 says do not stop or park opposite 
or within 10 metres (32 feet) of a junction, except in an authorised parking space. 
 
The area would not meet criteria to introduce Residents’ Permit Parking Scheme. 
 
Objection: If you proceed with your plans this is going to make resident of Moss 
Side Road park down the groves causing many problems. We already have to park 
on most day on New Moss Road can you not change the time of the bin collection to 
mid-day as this would solve any problems 
 
Response: Provision of double yellow lines at junctions would help emergency 
services at any time as well as bin services. Salford City Council’s Waste Services 
confirmed the restrictions would assist bin wagons.  
 
Objection: It would make more sense to put double yellow lines on the opposite side 
of Moss Side Road to stop vehicles parking opposite the ends of the groves stopping 
larger vehicles getting past. 
 
Response: The restrictions opposite each junction could be considered, however 
they have to be introduced as well as the junction protections, not on their own. It is 
considered the restrictions at the junctions and opposite would be an over restricted 
measure in the area. However, after delivery of the scheme, if such concerns will be 
still present, the additional restrictions could be considered. 
 
Objection: We have multiple cars to park up on this road and we have no issues as 
a street at the moment, all getting to park close to our homes. Regarding the bin men 
there has been no issues with the trucks getting down the street when on the street 
the issue is cars parking on the far side of moss side road that restricts the trucks 
being able to turn down the street mainly by parents dropping their kids at the local 
school.  
 
Response: The proposed double yellow lines will prevent inconsiderate parking 
caused by parents as well as any other road users and will keep the junction clear 
from parked vehicles at all times. As previously, additional double yellow lines could 
be considered after implementing the scheme. 
 
 
 

Page 5



 4 

After considering all of the representations an amended scheme has been drafted 
which reduces lengths of ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions on Moss Side Road at 
junction with Poplar Grove and Kenmore Grove from 10 metres originally proposed to 
5 metres. The new restrictions are being proposed as a compromise between the 
demand for on-street parking in this residential area, whilst still maintaining visibility 
for all road users.  
 
The recommended amended scheme is reproduced in Appendix 3 and on the plan in 
Appendix 4. 
 
 
DELIBERATIONS OF THE TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL 
 
Traffic Advisory Panel members and the objectors will be invited to join the remote 
Lead Member Briefing meeting. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Lead Member for Planning, Transport and Sustainable Development 
consider the objections, the contents of this report and make a decision to authorise 
the making of the Traffic Regulation Order in modified form as set out in this report, 
scheduled in Appendix 3 and on the plans in Appendix 4. 
 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
Local Transport Plan 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
N/A 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
The restrictions will be provided in accordance with the Traffic Signs Manual and 
Traffic Sign Regulations and General Directions (TSRGD 2016). 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  
The Council, by virtue of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 can introduce orders 
to manage traffic. Where Traffic Regulation Orders are required, they should not give 
rise to any particular legal implications provided the works and procedures are 
carried out in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements, which would 
include the consideration of any objections to a proposed TRO.

 

Page 6



 5 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
The scheme is funded from Highways Devolved Capital Budget for Irlam & 
Cadishead in 2022-2023 financial year.

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: 
There are no procurement implications. 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS: 
N/A 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: 
N/A 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 
None 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
Judyta Hands   
E-mail: judyta.hands@salford.gov.uk   
 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 
Cadishead and Lower Irlam 
 
John Searle 
Strategic Director, Place 
 

Page 7

mailto:judyta.hands@salford.gov.uk


 1 

 
 
 
 

 
SCHEDULE 1 

Amendment of Existing Order 
 

Column 1 Column 2 

 
 
TRO 1709 
Salford City Council (Allotment 
Road, Cadishead) (Introduction of 
School Keep Clear Markings and 
No Waiting at Any Time) Order 
2013 
 
 

 
 
 
Delete the entries in Schedule 2 to the Order – No 
Stopping, Monday to Friday, 8am-5pm - comprising:  
 
Allotment Road, north east side from the north west 
kerbline of Moss Side Road, in a north westerly 
direction for a distance of 34 metres (Cadishead 
Primary School) 
 
Allotment Road, north east side from a point 54 
metres south east of the southern kerbline of 
Lynthorpe Avenue in a south easterly direction for a 
distance of 43.5 metres (Cadishead Primary School) 
 

 
SCHEDULE 2 

No Stopping on School Entrance Markings 
Monday to Friday, 8am-5pm 

 

Column 1 
Length of Road 

Column 2 
School Comprised of the School Entrance 

 

 
Allotment Road, north east side, from a 
point 10 metres north east from the north 
eastern extended kerbline of Moss Side 
Road for a distance of 101.1 metres in a 
north westerly direction. 
 

 

 
Cadishead Primary School 

 
 
Moss Side Road, north west side, from a 
point 10 metres north east from the north 
eastern extended kerbline of Allotment 
Road for a distance of 63 metres in a north 
easterly direction. 
 

 
 

Cadishead Primary School 

 

Page 8



 2 

 
SCHEDULE 3 

No Waiting at Any Time 
 

 
Poplar Grove 

 

 
Both sides, from its junction with Moss Side Road for a 
distance of 10 metres in a north westerly direction. 
 

 
Kenmore Grove 

 

 
Both sides, from its junction with Moss Side Road for a 
distance of 10 metres in a north westerly direction. 
 

 
Moss Side Road 

 

 
North west side, from a point 10 metres south west from the 
extended south western kerbline of Poplar Grove to a point 10 
metres north east from the extended north eastern kerbline of 
Poplar Grove. 
 

 
Moss Side Road 

 

 
North west side, from a point 10 metres south west from the 
extended south western kerbline of Kenmore Grove to a point 
10 metres north east from the extended north eastern kerbline 
of Kenmore Grove. 
 

 
Moss Side Road 

 

 
North west side, from a point 9.1 metres south west from the 
extended south western kerbline of Allotment Road to a point 
10 metres north east from the extended north eastern kerbline 
of Allotment Road. 
 

 
Moss Side Road 

 

 
South east side, from a point 5 metres south west from the 
extended south western kerbline of Prospect Road to a point 6 
metres north east from the extended north eastern kerbline of 
Prospect Road. 
 

 
Allotment Road 

 

 
North east side, from its junction with Moss Side Road for a 
distance of 10 metres in a north westerly direction. 
 

 
Allotment Road 

 

 
South west side, from its junction with Moss Side Road for a 
distance of 12 metres in a north westerly direction. 
 

 
Prospect Road 

 

 
South west side, from its junction with Moss Side Road for a 
distance of 5 metres in a south easterly direction. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 9



10m
10m

10m

10m
10m

10m

POPLAR GROVE

KENMORE GROVE

MOSS SIDE ROAD

©
 Salford C

ity C
ouncil

\\uvstore.salford.gov.uk\EngH
igh$\Traffic M

anagem
ent\Traffic M

anagem
ent and C

ontrol\2383 Kenm
ore G

rove Area\2.0 TM
U

 & D
raw

ings\C
AD

\Kenm
ore G

rove Area.dw
g

This draw
ing is copyright to Salford C

ity C
ouncil. It shall not be used w

ithout
perm

ission for any purpose. R
eproduction is only perm

itted by prior arrangem
ent.

D
o not scale from

 this draw
ing. All discrepancies to be related back to the

originator for verification prior to com
m

encing the w
orks.

All dim
ensions are in                    unless otherw

ise stated.
C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L

 IN
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

PR
O

JEC
T

D
R

AW
IN

G

C
LIEN

T

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

U
M

BER

PR
O

JEC
T R

EF.
R

EVISIO
N

w
w

w
.salford.gov.uk

D
ATE

SC
ALE @

 A3
D

R
AW

N
C

H
EC

KED
APPR

O
VED

R
EV

D
ESC

R
IPTIO

N
D

R
N

C
H

K
D

ATE
APP

PU
R

PO
SE O

F ISSU
E

S
A

L
F

O
R

D
 C

IT
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

, C
IV

IC
 C

E
N

T
R

E
, C

H
O

R
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

,
S

W
IN

T
O

N
, M

A
N

C
H

E
S

T
E

R
, M

2
7 5

A
W

.  T
 0

1
6

1
 7

7
9

 4
8

0
0

m
illim

etres

SALFO
R

D
 C

ITY C
O

U
N

C
IL

IR
LAM

 & C
AD

ISH
EAD

 H
TG

M
O

SS SID
E R

O
AD

 AR
EA

PO
PLAR

 G
R

O
VE / KEN

M
O

R
E G

R
O

VE

TR
O

 2383
LEG

AL AD
VER

TISIN
G

S2 - FO
R

 IN
FO

R
M

ATIO
N

JM
H

R
O

R
O

1:500
26/08/2021

TR
O

 2383
P01

010064-03-02-SC
C

-H
G

N
-XX-D

R
-X-001

KEY:
- LIN

E FO
R

 M
EASU

R
IN

G
PU

R
PO

SES O
N

LY

- PR
O

PO
SED

 'N
O

 W
AITIN

G
 AT AN

Y
TIM

E' TR
AFFIC

 R
EG

U
LATIO

N
 O

R
D

ER

P01
First issue.

26-Aug-21
JM

H
R

O
R

O

N

 ©
 C

ro
w

n
 co

p
yrigh

t a
n

d
 d

a
ta

b
a

se
 rig

h
ts 2

02
1

 O
rd

n
a

nce
 S

u
rve

y 1
00

0
1

9
7

3
7

Page 10



5m5m

6m
10m

9.1m

63m
MOSS SIDE ROAD

MOSS SIDE ROAD

PROSPECT ROAD

ALLOTMENT ROAD

12m 10m

© Salford City Council \\uvstore.salford.gov.uk\EngHigh$\Traffic Management\Traffic Management and Control\2383 Kenmore Grove Area\2.0 TMU & Drawings\CAD\Kenmore Grove Area.dwg

This drawing is copyright to Salford City Council. It shall not be used without
permission for any purpose. Reproduction is only permitted by prior arrangement.
Do not scale from this drawing. All discrepancies to be related back to the
originator for verification prior to commencing the works.
All dimensions are in                    unless otherwise stated.
COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

PROJECT

DRAWING

CLIENT

DRAWING NUMBER

PROJECT REF. REVISION

www.salford.gov.uk

DATESCALE @ A3DRAWN CHECKED APPROVED

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

PURPOSE OF ISSUE

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,

SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

Salford City Council

millimetres

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL
IRLAM & CADISHEAD HTG

MOSS SIDE ROAD AREA
ALLOTMENT ROAD / PROSPECT ROAD

TRO 2383
LEGAL ADVERTISING

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

JMH RO RO NTS 26/08/2021

010064-03-02 P03

TRO2383-SCC-TGE-XX-DR-TR-0002

KEY:
- LINE FOR MEASURING
PURPOSES ONLY
- PROPOSED 'NO WAITING AT ANY
TIME' TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER
- EXISTING 'NO WAITING AT ANY TIME'
TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER

N

 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100019737

- PROPOSED 'NO STOPPING'
ON SCHOOL KEEP CLEAR
MARKINGS TRAFFIC
REGULATION ORDER

- EXISTING 'NO STOPPING' ON
SCHOOL KEEP CLEAR
MARKINGS TRAFFIC
REGULATION ORDER

P01 First issue. 26/08/21 JMH RO RO
P02 Amended restrictions. 11/01/22 JMH RMS RMS
P03 Amended measurements. 30/03/22 JMH MK MKP

age 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
37a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Cadishead



 1 

 
 
 
 

 
SCHEDULE 1 

Amendment of Existing Order 
 

Column 1 Column 2 

 
 
TRO 1709 
Salford City Council (Allotment 
Road, Cadishead) (Introduction of 
School Keep Clear Markings and 
No Waiting at Any Time) Order 
2013 
 
 

 
 
 
Delete the entries in Schedule 2 to the Order – No 
Stopping, Monday to Friday, 8am-5pm - comprising:  
 
Allotment Road, north east side from the north west 
kerbline of Moss Side Road, in a north westerly 
direction for a distance of 34 metres (Cadishead 
Primary School) 
 
Allotment Road, north east side from a point 54 
metres south east of the southern kerbline of 
Lynthorpe Avenue in a south easterly direction for a 
distance of 43.5 metres (Cadishead Primary School) 
 

 
SCHEDULE 2 

No Stopping on School Entrance Markings 
Monday to Friday, 8am-5pm 

 

Column 1 
Length of Road 

Column 2 
School Comprised of the School Entrance 

 

 
Allotment Road, north east side, from a 
point 10 metres north east from the north 
eastern extended kerbline of Moss Side 
Road for a distance of 101.1 metres in a 
north westerly direction. 
 

 

 
Cadishead Primary School 

 
 
Moss Side Road, north west side, from a 
point 10 metres north east from the north 
eastern extended kerbline of Allotment 
Road for a distance of 63 metres in a north 
easterly direction. 
 

 
 

Cadishead Primary School 

 

Page 12



 2 

 
SCHEDULE 3 

No Waiting at Any Time 
 

 
Poplar Grove 

 

 
Both sides, from its junction with Moss Side Road for a 
distance of 5 metres in a north westerly direction. 
 

 
Kenmore Grove 

 

 
Both sides, from its junction with Moss Side Road for a 
distance of 5 metres in a north westerly direction. 
 

 
Moss Side Road 

 

 
North west side, from a point 5 metres south west from the 
extended south western kerbline of Poplar Grove to a point 5 
metres north east from the extended north eastern kerbline of 
Poplar Grove. 
 

 
Moss Side Road 

 

 
North west side, from a point 5 metres south west from the 
extended south western kerbline of Kenmore Grove to a point 
5 metres north east from the extended north eastern kerbline 
of Kenmore Grove. 
 

 
Moss Side Road 

 

 
North west side, from a point 9.1 metres south west from the 
extended south western kerbline of Allotment Road to a point 
10 metres north east from the extended north eastern kerbline 
of Allotment Road. 
 

 
Moss Side Road 

 

 
South east side, from a point 5 metres south west from the 
extended south western kerbline of Prospect Road to a point 6 
metres north east from the extended north eastern kerbline of 
Prospect Road. 
 

 
Allotment Road 

 

 
North east side, from its junction with Moss Side Road for a 
distance of 10 metres in a north westerly direction. 
 

 
Allotment Road 

 

 
South west side, from its junction with Moss Side Road for a 
distance of 12 metres in a north westerly direction. 
 

 
Prospect Road 

 

 
South west side, from its junction with Moss Side Road for a 
distance of 5 metres in a south easterly direction. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 13



5m 5m

5m

5m 5m

5m

POPLAR GROVE

KENMORE GROVE

MOSS SIDE ROAD

© Salford City Council \\uvstore.salford.gov.uk\EngHigh$\Traffic Management\Traffic Management and Control\2383 Kenmore Grove Area\2.0 TMU & Drawings\CAD\Kenmore Grove Area.dwg

This drawing is copyright to Salford City Council. It shall not be used without
permission for any purpose. Reproduction is only permitted by prior arrangement.
Do not scale from this drawing. All discrepancies to be related back to the
originator for verification prior to commencing the works.
All dimensions are in                    unless otherwise stated.
COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

PROJECT

DRAWING

CLIENT

DRAWING NUMBER

PROJECT REF. REVISION

www.salford.gov.uk

DATESCALE @ A3DRAWN CHECKED APPROVED

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

PURPOSE OF ISSUE

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,

SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

Salford City Council

millimetres

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL
IRLAM & CADISHEAD HTG

MOSS SIDE ROAD AREA
POPLAR GROVE / KENMORE GROVE

TRO 2383
LEGAL ADVERTISING

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

JMH RO RO 1:500 26/08/2021

010064-03-02 P03

TRO2383-SCC-TGE-XX-DR-TR-0001

KEY:
- LINE FOR MEASURING
PURPOSES ONLY
- PROPOSED 'NO WAITING AT ANY
TIME' TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER

N

 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100019737

P01 First issue. 26/08/21 JMH RO RO
P02 Amended to 5m at Poplar Grove. 16/08/22 JMH MK MK
P03 Amended to 5m at Kenmore Grove. 31/10/22 JMH MK MK

P
age 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
24



5m5m

6m
10m

9.1m

63m
MOSS SIDE ROAD

MOSS SIDE ROAD

PROSPECT ROAD

ALLOTMENT ROAD

12m 10m

© Salford City Council \\uvstore.salford.gov.uk\EngHigh$\Traffic Management\Traffic Management and Control\2383 Kenmore Grove Area\2.0 TMU & Drawings\CAD\Kenmore Grove Area.dwg

This drawing is copyright to Salford City Council. It shall not be used without
permission for any purpose. Reproduction is only permitted by prior arrangement.
Do not scale from this drawing. All discrepancies to be related back to the
originator for verification prior to commencing the works.
All dimensions are in                    unless otherwise stated.
COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

PROJECT

DRAWING

CLIENT

DRAWING NUMBER

PROJECT REF. REVISION

www.salford.gov.uk

DATESCALE @ A3DRAWN CHECKED APPROVED

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

PURPOSE OF ISSUE

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,

SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

Salford City Council

millimetres

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL
IRLAM & CADISHEAD HTG

MOSS SIDE ROAD AREA
ALLOTMENT ROAD / PROSPECT ROAD

TRO 2383
LEGAL ADVERTISING

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

JMH RO RO NTS 26/08/2021

010064-03-02 P03

TRO2383-SCC-TGE-XX-DR-TR-0002

KEY:
- LINE FOR MEASURING
PURPOSES ONLY
- PROPOSED 'NO WAITING AT ANY
TIME' TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER
- EXISTING 'NO WAITING AT ANY TIME'
TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER

N

 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100019737

- PROPOSED 'NO STOPPING'
ON SCHOOL KEEP CLEAR
MARKINGS TRAFFIC
REGULATION ORDER

- EXISTING 'NO STOPPING' ON
SCHOOL KEEP CLEAR
MARKINGS TRAFFIC
REGULATION ORDER

P01 First issue. 26/08/21 JMH RO RO
P02 Amended restrictions. 11/01/22 JMH RMS RMS
P03 Amended measurements. 30/03/22 JMH MK MKP

age 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
37a

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
Cadishead



1 
 

Part 1 – Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 
 

The Strategic Director for Place 
 

TO 
 

Lead Member for Planning, Transport and Sustainable Development 
 

ON 
 

17 January 2023 

 
 
TITLE:  Consideration of the potential addition of Cleveland House, 224 Eccles Old 
Road to the Local List of Heritage Assets 

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Lead Member for Planning, 
Transport and Sustainable Development: 

i) Approves the addition of Cleveland House, 224 Eccles Old Road to the 
local list of heritage assets. 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

An application has been submitted by a local resident for the consideration of 
Cleveland House on Eccles Old Road be added to the Local List of heritage assets.   

Cleveland House is a detached property dating from towards the end of the 19th 
century and is a part three, part two storey building with a detached former stable 
block at the rear.  It was built originally for William Hinmers who was a county Justice 
of the Peace and a member of Eccles Congregational church.  It was then occupied 
by further wealthy residents; Salfordian James Higson who was a Salford Councillor 
and also a JP and later by Thomas Osborne, a corn miller and hay merchant.  The 
property remained in residential use until the late 1930s when it became a nursing 
home.   It was acquired by the city council in 1949.  More recently it was in office use 
until February 2021 when it became vacant and has remained so ever since.   It has 
recently been put up for sale by the city council.  

 A three-week consultation relating to the potential addition of the property to the 
local list was undertaken during July 2022. This involved writing to the neighbouring 
properties, with comments invited about the potential local listing. One 
representation was received from residents who had no objections to the proposal as 
they consider it to be a building of local importance but who did have some concerns 
that it may prohibit any future change of use of the property.   

Page 16

Agenda Item 3b



2 
 

 
Desktop research and an in-house assessment against the eight established local 
list criteria have been undertaken.  It is considered that the property does have 
sufficient local heritage value and is therefore worthy of inclusion on the local list of 
heritage assets.    
  

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

 

KEY DECISION:  No  

 
 

1.0 Introduction and Background Information  
 
1.1 Cleveland House, located at 224 Eccles Old Road is situated in the Pendleton 

and Charlestown ward.  It is not listed (national or locally) and not located 
within a conservation area.  An application has been submitted by a local 
resident for its addition to the local list of heritage assets.  See annex 1 of this 
report for photographs of the property.  

 
1.2 The property which is sited within a substantial sized plot was originally 

constructed as a detached dwelling house for one of the city’s wealthy 
residents towards the end of the nineteenth century.  It was extended shortly 
afterwards resulting in a large and imposing detached dwelling with a 
detached stable block at the rear.  It was in residential use until the late 1930s 
when it became a nursing home.   

 
1.3 The property was acquired by the city council in 1949.  More recently it was in 

use as offices for the NHS but it became vacant in February 2021 and has 
remained vacant ever since.  In October 2022 it was put up for sale by the city 
council.   

 
 
2.0 Local List 
 
2.1 The local list includes buildings, townscapes, landscapes, infrastructure, 

public art and other objects within the built environment that are considered to 
make a contribution to the character and historical legacy of the city and an 
area within it.  Everything on the local list is recognised as a “local heritage 
asset” and as such is given a degree of protection through the planning 
system.   

 
2.2 The current local list was adopted in 2013 and at that time a total of eight 

selection criteria were identified against which any future building, structure or 
feature could be assessed to be included on the list.  The eight criteria against 
which any proposed addition to the local list is appraised are; architectural 

Page 17



3 
 

interest, historical interest, age, aesthetic value, local interest, group value, 
landmark value and social or communal value. 

 
2.3 Paragraph 203 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires 

the effect of a planning application on the significance of a non-designated 
heritage asset to be taken into consideration in determining an application.  It 
further states “In weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect non-
designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having 
regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage 
asset.” 

 
2.4 Having regard to the NPPF, the fact that a building or site is on a local list is a 

material consideration when determining the outcome of a planning 
application.  This does not necessarily mean that planning permission will 
automatically be refused; in many circumstances it may simply require 
additional consideration of the design of the proposal to ensure that it is in 
keeping with the character and aesthetics of the property and does not detract 
from its heritage value.  However, similarly it must be acknowledged that 
inclusion on the local list is likely to be important in the consideration of 
proposals that have an impact on the character of the property to the extent 
that they would be detrimental to its value as a non-designated heritage asset.  
Applications for planning permission can be refused on the grounds of harm 
to a non-designated heritage asset. 

 
2.5 In addition, it should also be noted that should a prior notification application 

for the demolition of the building be submitted this could only be considered in 
terms of the proposed method of demolition and proposed restoration of the 
site.  Any local heritage value is not of consideration.     

 
3.0 Cleveland House 
 
3.1 The detached property which is set within spacious grounds was built around 

1878 as a single residential dwelling for one of the city’s wealthy residents.  It 
was substantially extended to the rear with a two storey addition during the 
1880s and this also included the erection of a detached stable block along the 
northern boundary.  The two storey extension was designed by local 
architects Maxell and Tuke who were based in Manchester and notably 
designed Blackpool Tower.  

 
3.2 The property is constructed in Flemish bond construction from red brick with a 

central entrance door flanked by a single storey bay window to either side.  
There are brick headers and stone cills to windows, decorative eaves 
including brick corbelling detail and it has a slate roof.  The two- storey 
extension built during the 1880s was large, of a similar construction but also 
included a rather unusual tower/turret feature on the eastern elevation with a 
weathervane and decorative curved tiles on its roof.  The property has also 
had a single storey rear extension subsequently to this. See Annex 1 of this 
report for photographs of the property. 

 
 

Page 18



4 
 

4.0 Consultation 
 
4.1 In July of this year the residents of the proposal property and those 

immediately adjoining/adjacent to it were notified about the proposal to add 
the property to the local list and invited to make any comments.  The ward 
councillors were also sent notifications.  One letter of representation was 
received from residents who had no objections to it being included on the 
local list but had concerns that its listing may prohibit it’s change of use, 
especially any changes necessary to the interior of the building. No concerns 
were raised about the application from ward councillors. 

 
4.2 In response to the representation, and as referred to in paragraphs 2.3 and 

2.4 above if planning permission were required, any local listing status would 
become a material consideration.  This would not necessarily mean that 
planning permission would be refused, but greater consideration may have to 
be given to the detail of any proposal to ensure that it remained in keeping 
with the character of the property and would not have a detrimental impact 
upon its value as a non-designated heritage asset.   

 
5.0 Appraisal 
 
5.1 Desktop research was undertaken followed by an in-house assessment of the 

property against the eight local list established criteria (see annex 2 of this 
report for this detailed assessment).   The main points from the assessment 
are set out below. 

 
5.2 The property was built during the late 19th century when the city was growing 

rapidly, and properties were required for the more wealthy residents.  The 
property remains largely in its original form and is a good example of its type.  
It also features a large two storey extension which included an unusual 
tower/turret feature and a stable block at the rear along the northern 
boundary.  This extension was designed by the same architects who later 
designed Blackpool Tower.  It stands on a prominent corner on Eccles Old 
Road with Lancaster Road and also has some value with properties 208 to 
214 further along Eccles Old Road which were also constructed around a 
similar time.  This part of Eccles Old Road became known as “Millionaires 
Row”.     

 
5.3 When the property was in use as a residential dwelling a couple of the former 

residents William Hinmers and James Higson, were both Justices of the 
Peace with the latter, a Salfordian by birth, also being a Salford Councillor.  
As such they both clearly played a role in the local community and the local 
cultural heritage of the city.  After this, the property became a nursing home 
and has subsequently remained in health and social care use for Salford 
residents.   

 
5.4 Taking all of the above factors into account (and the assessment at annex 2), 

including its former residents, its former use and local value and also the 
architectural and aesthetic value of the property, it is considered that the 

Page 19



5 
 

property is of sufficient heritage value to be deemed appropriate for inclusion 
on the local list of heritage assets. 

 
6.0 Recommendation 
 
6.1 It is recommended that the Lead Member for Planning, Transport and 

Sustainable Development: 
 

i) Approves the addition of Cleveland House, 224 Eccles Old Road to the 
local list of heritage assets.  

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

Unitary Development Plan saved policies  
Salford Local Plan: Development Management Policies and Designations (scheduled 
for adoption January 2023 and will replace all of the Unitary Development Plan 
policies). 
 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: It is not considered that 
the proposal would have a disproportionate impact on any of the protected groups. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: low – inclusion on the local list does not affect the 
requirement for planning permission but rather becomes a material consideration for 
any proposal requiring planning permission.  This does not necessarily mean that 
planning permission will be refused; it may simply require additional consideration of 
the design of the proposal. 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDING: n/a 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Comments from Justin Hobson.  Legal issues have been 
considered within the body of the report.  A local list is a non-statutory discretionary 
function of the Council.  Any decision to add/remove a heritage asset to/from the 
local list would have the potential to be subject to judicial review on the normal 
grounds. 
 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Martin Anglesey, Finance Officer, 2 December 2022 

There are no implications to existing budgets regarding this proposal. 
 

 

Page 20



6 
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: N/A

 

HR IMPLICATIONS:  N/A

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:   N/A 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Amelia Lucas 
 
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 0161 793 3287

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  

Pendleton and Charleston

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



7 
 

Annex 1: Photographs of the property 

Cleveland House front elevation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



8 
 

Two storey rear addition dating from the 1880s 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



9 
 

The turret/tower feature 

 

 

 

Page 24



10 
 

Former stable block along northern boundary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



11 
 

Annex 2: Assessment of Cleveland House against 
established local listing selection criteria 

 
No. Criteria Description Assessment of proposal 

properties 
 

1 Architectural 
interest 

Buildings and structures of an 
architectural design, decoration 
and craftsmanship that contributes 
positively to their environment and 
offer a composition that affords 
value, in its proportions, materials 
and construction 
 

A good example of an original 
Victorian villa that contributes 
to the streetscene and 
surrounding environment.  It is 
a large, part two, part three 
storey, red brick detached villa 
of Flemish bond construction 
which was built for the wealthy 
residents of the city.    
 
The property was built in two 
stages.  The rear two storey 
element was built slightly later 
than the front and included a 
two storey tower/turret 
structure to the side/rear with 
a weathervane and decorative 
curved tiles and eaves tiles.  
This rear extension was 
designed by Manchester 
architects Maxwell and Tuke 
based at 29 Princess 
Street,Manchester, who 
designed Cambridge Hall in 
Southport and also Blackpool 
Tower. 
 
There is a detached single 
storey former stableblock also 
included in the site, adjacent 
to the rear northern boundary.    

2 Historical 
interest 

A building, object or place that is 
connected with Salford, Greater 
Manchester or the north west’s 
social, economic and cultural 
growth and development, or is 
concerned with a person or event 
that plays a significant role in local 
or regional cultural heritage. 
 

The property was part of what 
became known as 
“Millionaires Row” and was 
originally built as a residential 
dwelling for William Hinmer, a 
county Justice of the Peace 
(JP).  It was then occupied by 
James Higson who was a 
Salford councillor and also a 
JP and subsequently Thomas 
Osborne who was a corn 
miller and hay merchant.  
Around 1937 it became a 
nursing home and was then 
acquired by the city council in 
1949.  It has subsequently 

Page 26



12 
 

No. Criteria Description Assessment of proposal 
properties 
 

become a base for health and 
social care services for 
Salford residents (although it 
is now vacant). 

3 Age Local heritage assets will be 
considered from all periods.  
However, particular attention will 
be given to buildings that pre-date 
1919 and therefore contribute to 
the principal industrial era under 
which the city established itself.  
Nevertheless, there are many 20th 
century buildings of impeccable 
design that must be considered 
due to their own cultural merits. 
 

Built 1878.  The rear element 
was built shortly after this   
during the 1880s, although the 
precise date is unknown.         

4 Aesthetic 
value 

The appearance of buildings, 
monuments, places and 
landscapes, including groups of 
buildings that individually or 
together form a set piece or 
characterise a townscape.  
Particular attention will be given to 
style, design, materials, 
composition and layout. 
 

A large and imposing, 
attractive property in Flemish 
bond construction with many 
original features retained.  
  
Double fronted with central 
doorway and entrance porch 
with single storey bay 
windows at ground floor. 
Stone cills and brick arched 
headers to all windows.  
 
Decorative eaves including 
brick corbelling detail below a 
slate roof.   
 
Unusual two storey 
tower/turret structure to 
eastern elevation of rear two 
storey extension with 
decorative shaped roof tiles 
and a weathervane.   
 
The property has some 
relationship and similar 
aesthetic characteristics with 
properties to the east at 208 – 
214 (evens) Eccles Old Road 
and also 220 and 222 Eccles 
Old Road, which all 
demonstrate the wealth of 
some of the residents of the 
city at the time and the growth 
of this part of the city. 
 

Page 27



13 
 

No. Criteria Description Assessment of proposal 
properties 
 

 
 

5 Local interest 1. People and events – 
buildings and landscapes 
associated with influential 
people and events. 

2. Industrial heritage – 
buildings and landscapes 
that represent most strongly 
Salford as a place different 
from other areas of the 
region or even within 
Greater Manchester 
 

Originally built for and home to 
William Hinmer a county 
Justice of the Peace and 
member of Eccles 
Congretational Church. It then 
became home to James 
Higson, a master painter and 
decorator and Salfordian by 
birth who later became a 
Salford Councillor and also a 
Justice of the Peace.  
Subsequently it became home 
of Thomas Osborne 
Warburton a corn miller and 
hay merchant until around 
1937 when it then became a 
nursing home where it is 
understood over 500 babies 
were born between 1939 - 
1949.  It remained in use for 
health and social services 
provision in Salford until 
February 2021. 

6 Group value The collective value of a 
townscape or landscape where 
individually assets have limited 
value, yet together comprise a 
common theme important to the 
growth of the city or with attractive 
aesthetic properties. 
 

The property has some 
townscape relationship with 
properties further to the east 
on Eccles Old Road which 
were also built for wealthy 
residents of the city at the 
time.    

7 Landmark 
value 

Assets that have historically 
marked important moments in the 
landscape, provide punctuation to 
streets or mark arrival points. 
 

The property is located on a 
prominent location on the 
corner of Eccles Old Road 
and Lancaster Road.   

8 Social or 
communal 
value 

Assets that are of value to a 
particular residential, commercial, 
historical, religious or interest 
group. 
 

None. 

  

 

 

  

Page 28



 Part 1 (Open to the Public) 
 

 

 
 

REPORT OF STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
TO LEAD MEMBER FOR 

PLANNING, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
ON 17TH JANUARY 2023 

 
 

TITLE: Review of Street Naming & Numbering Charges 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
It is recommended that the Lead Member for Planning:  
 
Approves the proposed Street Naming and Numbering charges to cover the costs of the 
investigations, consultations, and notification to internal and external organisations, and officer 
time and resources as detailed below. 

 __________________________________________________________________  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
  
The current SNN charges have not been reviewed for more than 10 years and are no longer 
cost effective, covering the officer time and work to carry out the street naming and 
numbering service.   The purpose of this report is to request that the Lead Member for 
Planning, Transport & Sustainable Development review and agree the introduction of new 
charges for the service of carrying out the SNN service. 
 
 _________________________________________________________________________  
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Street Naming & Numbering Table of Charges  
                                                                                                                                        _____  
 
KEY DECISION:  No 
 _________________________________________________________________________  
 
Background Information  
 
Given current public sector financial constraints and the rise over recent years of property 
development requiring street naming and numbering, it is proposed to increase the current 
charges for the discretionary naming and numbering services it provides.  This is also in line 
with other local authorities. SCC has not made any changes to its SNN charges to applicants 
since it was originally introduced over 10 years ago.  

The charges being introduced are intended to cover the administrative costs incurred by 
officers in providing the service.   This essentially relates to staff costs, and these have been 
apportioned in line with expected volumes of demand for the service.   The fees are based on 
cost recovery figures. 

 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 3c



Discretionary services are those services that an authority has the power but not the duty to 
provide, as provided for under Section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003. Charges cover 
services such as the administrative function of the service, working with Royal Mail, notifying 
Valuations Office, Land registry, emergency services, Utilities and many other bodies.    

The power to charge falls under Section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003. This sets out 
that a Local Authority may charge for discretionary services (services that an authority has the 
power but not a duty to provide). An authority may charge where the person who receives the 
service has agreed to its provision and the charge must not exceed the cost of providing the 
service. 
 

Officers have reviewed the time and costs associated with progressing the Street naming and 

Numbering requests, and a comparison exercise has been undertaken to ensure the charges 

set are in line with other neighbouring local councils. These are contained on the attached 

spreadsheet  

 

 __________________________________________________________________  
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Local Transport Plan 
 __________________________________________________________________  
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  N/A 
 

 __________________________________________________________________  
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: – N/A 
 

 __________________________________________________________________  
 
SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A 
 __________________________________________________________________  
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  
If the decision is made to implement the proposals in  this report, these 
should not give rise to any legal implications. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: N/A 
 __________________________________________________________________  
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS – N/A 
 __________________________________________________________________  

 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 
 __________________________________________________________________  
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Lesley Bates TEL. NO. 0161 779 6032 
 __________________________________________________________________  
 
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All  
 __________________________________________________________________  

Page 30



Naming and Numbering New 

Developments (1-20 

properties)

£117.50

Naming and Numbering New 

Developments (each additional 

address on top of the above)

£5.00

Naming and Numbering New 

Developments (per apartment 

block)

£117.50

Naming and Numbering New £117.50

Naming or Numbering a new 

property (1-10 properties)
£120.00

 Up to 10 

properties 
£35.00

per 

property

£145.00
Up to 4 

plots
£58.00

per individulal 

property
£60.00

 Up to 5 

properties 

 £100 per plot 

residential / 

commercial £300 per 

plot 

£50
 Up to 10 

properties 
£25.00

Up to 5 

plots

Naming and Numbering (each 

additional address on top of 

the above)

£10.00 £35.00 £14.00 £12.00 £40.00 £10.50 £20.00

Numbering of Apartment 

blocks (up to 5 floors)
£120.00

 Up to 5 

floors 

 The first residential 

unit - £100

per additional flat up 

to 10 flats - £30

per additional flat up 

to 25 flats - £25

per additional flat 

above 25 flats - £20 

Numbering of Apartment 

blocks additional floors/flats 

beyond the above (per floor)

£35.00

per 

additional 

floor

58.00£    £215.00

Naming a new road / street £120.00 £230.00 £180.00 £300.00 £100.00

Renaming/adding or removing 

a name (per property)
£35.00  £   35.00 £66.00  £ 115.00 

 Change of a 

building name 
 £  215.00 £100 £25.00

Renumbering an existing 

property (per property)
£35.00

35.00£    
£14.00 £58.00

Alterations in either street 

name or property numbers to 

new developments after initial 

street naming and numbering 

has been undertaken and 

confirmed (first address)

£35.00 35.00£    £210.00 £115.00 £125.00 200.00£  

Per address in adition to the 

above
£35.00 35.00£    £22.00 £12.00 £125.00

Rename a street when 

requested by residents (the 

cost of any amendments 

required to Traffic Orders will 

be charge separately)

£250.00 230.00£  £210.00 £230.00 215.00£  
Please contact us 

for a cost
£30.00

 Hourly rate 

(plus legal 

fees where 

appropriate) 

£100.00

Re addressing when name a 

street when requested by 

residents (per affected 

property)

£22.00 £23.00 £10.00

Confirmation of historical 

address to solicitors, agents, 

conveyancer, etc. (per 

property)

£35.00 £66.00

Confirmation of an existing 

registered postal address or 

reissuing of SNN documents 

already confirmed (per 

property)

£35.00 £35.00 £66.00 £58.00 £30.00
Hourly rate 

charged

Preparing the Plot to Postal £0.00 £200.00

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL

EXISTING CHARGES

Manchester Rochdale  Warrington Wigan Bury Bolton StockportSCC Proposed New Charges 

P
age 31



Naming and Numbering 

New Developments (1-20 

properties)

Naming and Numbering 

New Developments (each 

additional address on top 

of the above)

Naming and Numbering 

New Developments (per 

apartment block)

Naming and Numbering 

New Developments (per 

apartment block)

Naming or Numbering 

a new property (1-10 

properties)

Naming and Numbering 

(each additional address 

on top of the above)

Numberin

g of 

Apartmen

t blocks 

(up to 5 

floors)

Numberin

g of 

Apartmen

t blocks 

additional 

floor 

beyonf 

Naming a 

new road 

/ street 

Renaming

/adding or 

removing 

a name 

(per 

property)

Renumber

ing an 

existing 

property 

(per 

property)

Alteration

s in either 

street 

name or 

property 

numbers 

to new 

Rename a 

street 

when 

requested 

by 

residents 

(the cost 

Confirmati

on of 

historical 

address to 

solicitors, 

agents, 

conveyanc

Confirmati

on of an 

existing 

registered 

postal 

address or 

reissuing 

Reregister

ing an 

existing 

property

Salford £117.50 £5.00 £117.50 £117.50 £117.50 £10.00 £117.50 £35.00 £117.50 £35.00 £35.00 £35.00 £250.00 £35.00 £35.00 £0.00

Wigan £35.00 230.00£   230.00£   35.00£     

Bury
 Per street name up to 4 

plots - £145.00  /Each 

 

Change / 
 First 

property - 

 First 

property - 
66.00£     66.00£     

Bolton
 £58 per individulal 

property  /  New 

development (more than 

58.00£     

 £58   

house 

name/nu

£115 + £12 per unit
 £230 + 

£23 per 

property  

58.00£     

Stockport

 up to 5 properties - £60 

per property  /   each 

property above 5 - £40 

per property 

£180 Free

Warrington 

 £100 per plot residential 

/ commercial £300 per 

plot 

 The first 

residential 

unit - 

£100

per 

additional 

flat up to 

10 flats - 

£30

per 

additional 

flat up to 

25 flats - 

£25

per 

additional 

flat above 

25 flats - 

£20 

£215 300.00£   £100 £125 Per Plot

 Please 

contact us 

for a cost 

Manchester 

 Numbering of property - 

£50 for 1-10 properties 

plus £10.50 a property 

thereafter 

100.00£   25.00£     

 hourly 

rate at 

£30 (plus 

legal fees 

where 

appropriat

e) 

 Street 

naming 

and 

numberin

g enquiry - 

hourly 

rate 

charged at 

£30 

Rochdale  

 £25 per plot for 1-5 plots

£20 per plot for 5 or 

more plots 

200.00£   

 £100 plus 

£10 per 

house 

Free

200

Proposed 

New 

Charges in 

line with 

GeoPlace  

P
age 32


	Agenda
	3a City of Salford (Allotment Road, Kenmore Grove, Poplar Grove, Moss Side Road And Prospect Road, Cadishead And Lower Irlam) (Prohibition of Waiting, No Stopping on School Entrance Markings and Amendment) Order 2023.
	Appendix 1 - Schedules as advertised
	Appendix 2 - Plans as advertised
	Appendix 3 - Recommended amended schedules
	Appendix 4 - Recommended amended plans

	3b Consideration of the potential addition of Cleveland House, 224 Eccles Old Road, to the Local List of Heritage Assets.
	3c Review of Street Naming and Numbering Charges.
	1 - New Street Naming & Numbering Charges 2022
	2 - New Street Naming & Numbering Charges 2022


